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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Knight Health Holdings LLC (d/b/a ScionHealth)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Knight Health Holdings LLC (d/b/a
ScionHealth) and subsidiaries (the Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements™).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued.

2404-4517242 1

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



EY

Building a better
working world

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

* Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal

control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
éAM ¥ MLL?

April 5, 2024
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
REVETIUECS ... ettt e e e s $ 3,591,818 $ 3,261,253
Salaries, wages and benefits .........ccceevveeriiiiiieeiie et 1,975,759 1,872,012
SUPPLIES oottt ettt et e e e be e et e e e nbaeeabaeenraeners 411,152 390,529
BUilAINg TENT...eeuviieiiieieecie ettt ettt e b esaeeneeas 146,974 139,844
EQUIPMENT TENT ..eovtiiiiiiiiiiecieeceece ettt st e e e s esaeesnbeeenaae e 28,526 20,726
Other OPerating EXPEINSES . ..cccuuierureeireeeieeeitieeieeeireeeteeesseessseeeseessseessseesseessseeses 996,108 808,548
Transition SErvices (INOTE 16)......eiecviiiiiieeiieiiieeiee et eee e eae e 40,929 57,503
OthET INCOME ....veiivieiiie ettt ettt e st et e sbeesae e sbeesaaeesebeessaeessseennseenes (23,879) (20,665)
Litigation CONtINZENCY EXPEISE ..veervrierveerrrierireerireereeesaeeenseeesseeesseeesseessseessseesns 1,250 3,000
Restructuring charges (income) (NOtE 5).....ccvvieiiieiiieiiiecieecieeeee e (7,360) 58,865
Depreciation and amortiZation.............ecueeeveeieriereereerieseeseeseeie e seeseeesseens 119,608 116,480
Sponsor fees and value capture initiatives (Note 16)......cccveeveeceeiiereenieeienen. 2,052 1,017
TNEETEST EXPEIISE .vveeetieiiiieeiiieeitee et eeetee et e st e et ee st eesabee st eesaseesnbeesaseesnbeenaneenns 121,533 74,455
INVESTMENT INCOMC......vievvieirieiieieieeiierieete ettt eetesteeteebeesseesaessaesaaesaeesseesseensenns (2,542) (885)
3,810,110 3,521,429
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes ..........occevevevvereerveennenne. (218,292) (260,176)
Provision fOr iNCOME tAXES .......covviiiieieeeiieee e 1,601 982
Loss from continuing OPerations ...........cceeevveerveesiueesveeneeesreeseeeseeesseeennes (219,893) (261,158)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes.................... (2,025) 2,982
INEE LOSS 1.ttt ettt (221,918) (258,176)
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (continuing operations)............... 17,396 23,875
Loss attributable to the ScionHealth ...............c.ccoeviiiiieiiieiennn, $ (204,522) $ (234,301)
Amounts attributable to ScionHealth:
Loss from continuing Operations............c.ecveecveeeeeeesreesreesneseeseensesnennns § (202,497) § (237,283)
Income (loss) from discontinued Operations............cceeveerueerveeeesreenennn. (2,025) 2,982
INEL LOSS 1ottt ettt $ (204,522) $ (234,301)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022

N LOSS . eveveetieeee ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et ne et e et e e ete et e e ete et enseaeesens § (221,918) $ (258,176)
Other comprehensive loss:

Defined benefit post-retirement plan:

Unrealized gain (loss) due to fair value adjustments............ccccuvenee. (103) 742

Other comprehensive inCome (10SS).....ceovveeriieiriieeiiieiieeiee e (103) 742
COomPIEheNSIVE 10SS ...ecvviieiiiiiieeiieciieeiee sttt (222,021) (257,434)
Loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (continuing operations) ......... 17,396 23,875
Comprehensive loss attributable to ScionHealth...........c.cccovvverieniiniennnnnne. $ (204,625) $ (233,559)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)

December 31, December 31,
ASSETS 2023 2022
Current assets:
Cash and cash €QUIVAIENLS .........coiviieiiiiieietieiece ettt st seeseeaess s eseesessensens $ 76,907 $ 31,372
Insurance subsidiary INVESTMENTS ............euiiiiiieieiiiiii ettt ettt ettt et sbe et et sbeeneesbeebeeneenee 573 1,669
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE. ... .evvieceieieie ettt ettt e e et e e eaeeeaeeeneeeteeeaeeenteeeaeeeneeens 782,288 755,360
IIIVEIIEOTIES ..ottt et ettt e et e et e eateeete e eteeenaeeeaeeeaseenseeeseeeaseenseeeseeenssenseenteeeneeenseeaeeenes 63,551 63,400
OLhEr (INOE 13).uiiiieieiiieteit ettt es 38,293 34,542
961,612 886,343
Property and equipment:
Land........ 125,971 114,927
Buildings ... 776,642 697,379
Equipment .................. 359,942 344,347
CONSIIUCTION TN PLOGIESS .vvvtveateneereaseeeneeseasenseseeseasessesseseasessesseseasessenseseasessesseseasessessesessessensesessessenseses 30,459 36,763
1,293,014 1,193,416
Accumulated dePrECIAtION. ........cveriiiiieiieiiciiet ettt ettt et ettt eteese s e eteesae s e eaeenseseeseesaenseereeseennes (424,003) (313,257)
869,011 880,159
GOOAWILL ...ttt b et b et b et e b et b e st eb e st e b es et ebeneenebene 133,709 107,600
Intangible assets less accumulated amortization of $1,536 — 2023 and $2,356 — 2022 ........cccecevveverrrennene 11,968 9,750
Insurance SubSIIary INVESTMENTS ..........cueiiiiiiitieiiiti ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt este et estesbeeaeeteeseebeeseebeeseeneens 4,900 14,278
Operating 1€ase TIZht-0f-USE ASSES....c..ecuiiiiriiiiiiitiriieiiet ettt sttt 302,102 349,597
ASSELS NELA TOI SALE .....eiieiii e e e e ettt e e et e e et e e e et e e e ear e e eearae e ereeeeanes 31,035 4,500
OLhET (INOE 13) ..ttt ettt ettt sttt b et enae 190,109 227,703
TOLAL ASSELS (@)..veevvivierieeiiite ettt ettt ettt et et eete et e eteete et e eteeseeseeseessesseeaeessesseeseessesseeseenseseeseessenne $ 2,504,446 $ 2,479,930
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADIC. ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ete et eeaeese e s e eseeseesseeseessessesseeseenseas $ 395,573 $ 316,038
Salaries, wages and other COMPENSALION ...........ciuiiuiiiiriiitieieie ettt ettt et et eae e 188,571 165,581
Operating lease liabilities — CUITENT POTLION .......cuiiuiiiiiiiitieieitt ettt ettt 146,137 137,267
DUe t0 third PALLY PAYOTS ....eeeuiiiieiiiiieti ettt ettt ettt b ettt e he et e b e bt esee b e e bt eseeneeeaeeneeneeas 30,681 25,694
Professional lHability TISKS.......co.iiiiiiiiiiiiice et et 47,265 46,736
Other accrued labilities (INOTE 13)....iiiiiiieriiieiieiiieeie ettt teestee s e esreesseessaeenseessaesssesnseenseennes 96,593 100,976
INCOIMIE TAXES 1.ttt ettt ettt b e a et b e b e bt s bt e bt e bt bt e bt e bt eb e e it e b bt e st et sbe et e 918 576
Long-term debt due within one year held for sale............cooiiiiiiiiininiiic e 340 -
Long-term debt due Within ONE YEAT .......cc.ciiiriiieiiiiirieieieeree ettt 5,896 4,500
Finance lease obligations due Within ONE YEaT ...........ccuovuiriiiiiiiiieie et 7,819 11,994
919,793 809,362
Long-term debt held fOr SAIE ........c.iiiiiiiiieiii ettt 13,907 -
LONE-EIIM AEDL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt ea et et beene et neennes 896,739 672,942
FINance 1€ase ODIIZATIONS .....c..irtiiiiiiiitiiiieieeeet ettt b ettt et et nbesb et e b 325,429 318,027
Professional lHability TISKS .......oouiiiiiiiiiiee et 219,099 234,899
Operating lease 1iabilities — IONG-LEIIN .....c.oiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiece e 205,887 300,949
Deferred credits and other liabilities (NOtE 13) ....c.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieie e 84,844 89,267
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Stockholders’ equity (deficit):
Preferred StoCK, PAr VAIUE .....cc.ooiiiiiiciiiie ettt 329,000 329,000
Common StOCK, PAT VAIUE .......oouiiiiiiiiiieiiii ettt ettt sbe e 10,000 10,000
Capital in €XCeSS O PAT VAIUE ....c.veiiiiiiiiiiiiiteee ettt (32,036) (32,763)
Accumulated other COMPreNeNnsiVe INCOME .......cueiuiiiiiiiiiiiieieeieee et 185 288
ACCUMUIALEA AETICTE..e..etieiiiieitieie ettt ettt et (463,824) (259,302)
(156,675) 47,223
Noncontrolling interests — redeemMabIe...........coviiiiriiiiieeee et (12,783) 3,938
Noncontrolling interests — NONredeemMabIe ...........c.cciiiiiiiiiiiiii e 8,206 3,323
Total stockholders’ equity (AEfICIt).......ccuevuiiieiiiiiiieieie ettt (161,252) 54,484
Total liabilities (a) and stockholders’ equity (defiCit).........ocevvririirieieiiiiieieccieeee e $ 2,504,446 $ 2,479,930

(a) The Company’s consolidated assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 include total assets of variable interest entities of $194.9 million and
$154.1 million, respectively, which can only be used to settle the obligations of the variable interest entities. The Company’s consolidated
liabilities as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 include total liabilities of variable interest entities of $99.1 million and $53.6 million, respectively.
See Note 1 of the notes to consolidated financial statements for additional information.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(In thousands)

Accumulated
Preferred Common Capital in other Noncontrolling Noncontrolling
stock, stock, par excess of par comprehensive Accumulated interests - interests -
par value value value income (loss) deficit redeemable nonredeemable Total
Balances, December 31, 2021........... $ 329,000 $ 10,000 $ (31,386) ¢ (454) $ (25,001) $ 22942 § 2,197 $ 307,298
Comprehensive loss:
NEt L0SS oo (234,301) (18,857) (5,018) (258,176)
Other 742 742
Comprehensive loss............ (257,434)
Service-vested profit units.......... 589 589
Contributions from
noncontrolling interests.......... 6,000 6,000
Distributions to noncontrolling
interest (70) (56) (126)
Purchase of noncontrolling
interest: (202) (77) 200 (79)
Other (1,764) (1,764)
Balances, December 31, 2022........... 329,000 10,000 (32,763) 288 (259,302) 3,938 3,323 54,484
Comprehensive loss:
NEL0SS coveeereeereeeeeeereeeresee (204,522) (16,575) (821) (221,918)
Other. (103) (103)
Comprehensive loss ........... (222,021)
Service-vested profit units.......... 727 727
Contributions from
noncontrolling interests.......... 7,125 7,125
Distributions to noncontrolling
interest: 6) (3,967) (3,973)
Purchase of noncontrolling
interest (140) 11,052 10,912
Divestiture of noncontrolling
INEETESES .o (8,506) (8,506)
Balances, December 31, 2023........... $ 329,000 $ 10,000 $ (32,036) ¢ 185 § (463,824) $ (12,783) $ 8206 $ (161,252)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities:
NEE LOSS ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt e ettt e et e et eae et e et ene et e et ensese et eneeaeeneaeerenas $ (221918) § (258,176)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation ...........ccceerveeriieerieeneeenie e eeieeeseeeaeeesieeenee s 120,998 116,480
Amortization of leasehold interest assets and liabilities, net............ccceevvenen. (29,899) (30,327)
Amortization of deferred compensation COSES ........eevvierevieriiieriienieerieerireeieenn 727 589
Amortization of deferred financing COStS .....cccvevvvreviieriieiiiecie e 4,715 3,772
Deferred INCOME tAXES . .....ceuveiiierientieieiieeiieitetee sttt 112 23
Gain 0N SA1E OF ASSELS ....vivviereieiieiieiieeeeeee et (39,846) -
Loss on write-off of information technology asset............cccoeeververeevereenenne. - 28,777
OBRET ..ttt ettt 4,268 (1,451)
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIC ... .iviiiieiieieeie ettt 17,687 (60,684)
Inventories and Other ASSELS ..........oovvviiiiirieeieeee e 42,564 34,303
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC ......viiieiieiieii ettt 57,986 114,774
INCOME tAXES ..veeirieiiieiiteeeit ettt ettt ettt ettt et e e e saae e s e e saaeeneeas (1,356) 329
Due to third Party PAYOTS .......coveriieriieiieieeeereesteerie e eee e e sreesaeeseenne e 4,912 (15,325)
Other accrued Habilities .......c.eecvievieierieieieeee e (52,818) (70,693)
Net cash used in operating activities .........cccveevveerreereeeieeerieeereeeveeenes (91,868) (137,609)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Routine capital eXpenditures ..........cccceeeeiieiiiieeieeiieecie et esee e eree e (32,078) (48,511)
Development capital eXpenditures ..........cccveeeeeerieerieeiiie e eeiee e evee e (17,670) (28,833)
Acquisition of healthcare facilities, net of cash acquired............ccoeeeveerviennenn. (77,373) -
Sale of assets under coOmMmON CONLIOL ......cccuvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 34,814 -
N T 1 (S0 B 11 £ RO 57,847 706
Deconsolidation of variable interest entity ..........cceeeveerviencieerieerieeieesieeenens (551) -
(@ 11 115 SO SRUUUP PRSI (2,626) (3,895)
Net cash used in INVESting aCtVILIES......ccvevverieriieieeiereeie e (37,637) (80,533)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings under revolving credit ............oceeveeriereerieereennnne. 218,600 334,500
Repayment of borrowings under revolving credit...........occoevveeeiieiieienieneennen. (40,000) (178,000)
Repayment of term loan and other long-term debt............ccoovvevieiiiiiiicinnnne. (6,022) (4,500)
Payment of finance lease obligations .............cceevverieniieriieieeieneeie e (7,654) (10,059)
Payment of deferred financing COSS .......ccovvvevviiriinieriieiieiecieeee e (3,242) (4,256)
Contributions from noncontrolling iNterests..........ocevvervierieeieneeneecreeieeeenenn 7,125 6,000
Distributions to noncontrolling iNtErests ...........oevveeierverrierieeiesieseeie e (3,973) (126)
Purchase of noncontrolling iNterests ...........ccveviervieieeienieenieeiesee e (140) (79
Net cash provided by financing activities..........ccceeeereerienireieeeienieeenns 164,694 143,480
Change in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash............ccccoovieiieiinnnnn. 35,189 (74,662)
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period................... 47,333 121,995
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period ...........cccoecveeneennen. $ 82,522 $ 47333
Supplemental information:
INEEIESt PAYIMCIILS ....veiviiiiieeiieeiiete ettt ete et e et et esteebeeraeeaeesteesseesseesseesaeesnens $ 109,645 $ 69,334
INCOME tAX PAYIMENLS. ...evieiiiieiiieiieeiii ettt et sae et e s e estaeesaaeentaeeseaeeneees 1,032 629
Rental payments to Ventas, INC........ccccveriiiiiieniieiiieie e 132,877 134,325

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Reporting entity

Knight Health Holdings LLC (d/b/a ScionHealth) is a healthcare services company that through its subsidiaries operates long-
term acute care (“specialty”) hospitals and short-term acute care (“community”) hospital campuses and associated health systems
across the United States (collectively, the “Company” or “ScionHealth”).

Lifepoint Transaction

On December 23, 2021, Kindred Healthcare, LLC (“Kindred”) and Lifepoint Health (“Lifepoint”), and certain of their
respective affiliates, entered into a reorganization (the “Lifepoint Reorganization). Upon closing of the Lifepoint Reorganization, a
new healthcare services company began operating under the name ScionHealth. ScionHealth and Lifepoint, and certain of their
respective affiliates entered into a series of transactions that, among other things, provided for (i) the separation of the inpatient
rehabilitation facility, behavioral health, contract rehabilitation service and certain support center businesses (collectively, the “Knight
Transferred Business™) from the businesses of Kindred and its subsidiaries; (ii) the separation of the equity and assets comprising 18
short-term acute care hospitals of Lifepoint (the “Artemis Business”) from the business of Lifepoint and its subsidiaries; (iii) the
transfer of the Knight Transferred Business to Lifepoint; (iv) the transfer of the Artemis Business to the Company; (v) the acquisition
by Lifepoint of Class B Units of ScionHealth; and (vi) reciprocal indemnification obligations with respect to the businesses
transferred, in each case of clauses (i) through (vi), pursuant to the reorganization, separation and distribution steps described therein.
The Company refers to the foregoing transactions as the “Lifepoint Transaction”.

Lifepoint holds all of the Class B Units of ScionHealth, which are perpetual non-convertible non-voting units that accrue
cumulative dividends at the rate of 10.00% per annum and, upon liquidation, are entitled to a return of their nominal value issue price
plus accrued, unpaid dividends. The Class B Units of ScionHealth are senior to Class A Equity of ScionHealth with respect to
dividends, distributions, liquidations, and dissolution. In the event of a qualifying initial public offering, Lifepoint may elect to redeem
the Class B Units of ScionHealth for cash at a redemption price equal to the liquidation preference, subject to minimum multiple of
invested capital of 1.5x. The Class B Units of ScionHealth were fair valued at the date of issuance using the discounted cash flow
approach. The analysis resulted in the Class B Units of ScionHealth having a fair value of $329 million, which is reflected as preferred
stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity (deficit).

As of December 23, 2021, Apollo Global Management was the ultimate parent of both Lifepoint and ScionHealth; therefore, the
Company accounted for the Lifepoint Transaction in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Subtopic 805-50, Related Issues, as a transaction between entities under common control.

Basis of presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Company include all subsidiaries that the Company controls,
including variable interest entities (“VIEs”) for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. All intercompany transactions have
been eliminated.

The Company has completed several transactions related to the divestiture of unprofitable hospitals and nursing centers to
improve its future operating results. The Company is currently in the process of completing the divestiture of seven senior living
locations (as described in Note 2 and Note 4). For accounting purposes, the operating results of these businesses have been classified
as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include amounts based upon the estimates and judgments of management. Actual amounts may
differ from those estimates.

Recently issued accounting requirements

In August 2023, the FASB issued an amendment to ASC 805, Business Combinations, and ASC 845, Nonmonetary
Transactions, when accounting for contributions made to a joint venture. The objectives of the amendments are to provide decision-
useful information to investors and other allocators of capital in a joint venture’s financial statements and reduce diversity in practice.
The amendments in this are effective prospectively for all joint venture formations with a formation date on or after January 1, 2025.
Additionally, a joint venture that was formed before January 1, 2025, may elect to apply the amendments retrospectively if it has
sufficient information. Early adoption is permitted in any interim or annual period in which financial statements have not yet been
issued, either prospectively or retrospectively. The Company will not elect to early adopt, and adoption of the amendment is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations, or liquidity.



KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Revenues

Revenues are recognized as performance obligations are satisfied, which is over time as patient services are rendered throughout
the length of stay, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for services. A
performance obligation is defined as a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct good or service to the customer. Substantially all of
the Company’s contracts with patients and customers have a single performance obligation as the promise to transfer services is not
distinct or separately identifiable from other promises in the contract.

The transaction price for the Company’s contracts represents its best estimate of the consideration the Company expects to
receive and includes assumptions regarding variable consideration as applicable. These variable considerations include estimated
amounts due from patients and third party payors for healthcare services provided, including anticipated settlements under
reimbursement agreements with Medicare, Medicaid, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid Managed, and other third party payors. These
revenues are subject to retroactive adjustments due to audits, reviews, changes in program administration and rules, and outcome of
litigation. These settlements are estimated based on the agreement with the payor and correspondence, which includes an assessment
to ensure it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognition will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the retroactive adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted in future periods as
adjustments become known (that is, new information becomes available) or as years are settled or are no longer subject to audits or
reviews.

Provisions for estimated third party adjustments are recorded in the period the related services are rendered to the extent it is
probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue will occur. Any remaining differences between the amounts accrued and
subsequent settlements are recorded in the periods in which the interim or final settlements are determined. Changes in estimates due
to settlements of prior fiscal years’ cost reports, third party settlements, and the disposition of other payor audits and settlements were
not significant. Future changes in Medicare and Medicaid programs and reduction in funding levels could have an adverse effect on
the Company. There were no other significant changes to the judgments used to determine the transaction price in prior periods.

A summary of revenues by payor type follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
IMEAICATE ... $ 969,500 $ 903,789
MediCaid.......cooveiieiiieieeeie e 265,242 206,402
Medicare Advantage..........cceevveerieeniieniieenieenieeniee e 692,330 623,648
Medicaid Managed..........cceeeveevieienieneeieeie e 371,343 379,869
ComMETICIAL ....ovvviiiiiiiiiiei e 1,144,405 1,009,331
Self-pay and other..........c.ccvvevieriieniieiicie e 148,998 138,214

§ 3591818 § 3,261,253

Concentration of credit risk

The Company grants credit without collateral to their patients and third party payors. The mix of receivables from patients and
third party payors as of December 31 is as follows:

2023 2022

MEAICATE ...ttt 18% 19%
MeEdICaId....cueiiieiiiiiiiineeree e 4% 4%
Medicare Advantage...........ceceeverueuenininieneeeneeeereeieneens 23% 19%
Medicaid Managed..........ccceeveeienieniineninieneneneeeeeeeereens 15% 16%
CommMETCIal ....ccuveiiiiiiiiiiiieecc e 29% 34%
Self-pay and other...........ccccoveriniiiiiiiinieec 11% 8%

100% 100%

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments, including cash in excess of FDIC limits, with an original maturity
of three months or less when purchased. The Company reclassifies outstanding checks in excess of funds on deposit. As of
December 31, 2023, $20.7 million was reclassified to accounts payable and $1.0 million was reclassified to salaries, wages and other
compensation. As of December 31, 2022, $11.4 million was reclassified to accounts payable and $0.9 million was reclassified to
salaries, wages and other compensation.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash (Continued)

The Company follows ASC 230, Statement of Cash Flows, which simplifies the disclosure of restricted cash within the
statements of cash flows. The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents, as reported in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets, to cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, as reported in the accompanying consolidated statements of
cash flows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents .........c.ccveeiieiiieeiie it $ 76,907 $ 31,372
Restricted cash:

Insurance subsidiary investments (CUITENt) ..........cccveeveveerueeerueeeireeereeennns 573 1,669

Other aSSES (CUITENL) ..eevvveerereeieiierieeiieeseeerieeesteeesieeeseeeeteeeseesreeeseeenns 142 14

Insurance subsidiary investments (long-term)...........cccoevveeeieenveenennnns 4,900 14,278
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash..........c.ccccovvivviiiinieniieeie, $ 82,522 $ 47,333

Insurance subsidiary investments

The Company maintains a portfolio of insurance subsidiary investments, consisting principally of cash and cash equivalents, for
the payment of claims and expenses related to professional liability and workers’ compensation risks maintained by its limited purpose
insurance subsidiary, Cornerstone Insurance Company (“Cornerstone Insurance”). These investments are reported at fair value. Since
the Company’s insurance subsidiary investments are restricted for a limited purpose, they are classified in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets based upon the expected current and long-term cash requirements of Cornerstone Insurance. See Note 8.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from the Medicare and Medicaid programs, other government programs,
managed care health plans, commercial insurance companies, hospital customers, individual patients and other customers. Estimated
implicit price concessions are recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a particular account will not be collected.

In evaluating the collectability of accounts receivable, the Company considers a number of factors, including the age of the
accounts, changes in collection patterns, the composition of patient accounts by payor type, the status of ongoing disputes with third
party payors and general industry conditions. Actual collections of accounts receivable in subsequent periods may require changes in
the estimated provision for loss. Changes in these estimates are charged or credited to the results of operations in the period of change
and were not material for the years ended December 31, 2023 or 2022.

Due to third party payors

The Company’s specialty hospitals and community hospitals are required to submit cost reports at least annually to various state
and federal agencies administering the respective reimbursement programs. In many instances, interim cash payments to the Company
are only an estimate of the amount due for services provided. Any overpayment to the Company arising from the completion of a cost
report is recorded as a liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Laws and regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, and other governmental programs are complex, prone to changes, and
subject to varying interpretation. The Company believes it is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations governing Medicare,
Medicaid, and other governmental programs, as well as contracts that it has with commercial payors, and that adequate provisions
have been recorded for any adjustments that may result from final settlements.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceutical and medical supplies and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net
realizable value.

Leases

The Company leases real property and equipment under finance and operating leases. The Company determines whether an
arrangement is a lease at inception. For leases with terms greater than twelve months, the Company records the right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities at the present value of lease payments over the term. Leases may include rent escalation clauses and options to extend
or terminate them that are factored into the determination of lease payments when appropriate. Interest rates used in computing the
present value of the lease payments are based upon the lower of the Company’s incremental borrowing rate or the implicit rate at the
inception of the lease.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use assets, operating lease liabilities — current portion, and operating
lease liabilities — long-term on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term and is included in building rent and equipment rent on the accompanying consolidated statements of
operations. Finance leases are included in property and equipment, finance lease obligations due within one year, and finance lease
obligations on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Property and equipment under finance lease obligations are depreciated
straight-line over the lease term or the estimated useful lives.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment acquired in connection with business combinations are recorded at estimated fair value in accordance
with the acquisition method of accounting as prescribed in ASC 805, Business Combinations, while all other property and equipment
that is purchased is recorded at cost. Depreciation expense, computed by the straight-line method, was $119.4 million and
$116.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Depreciation rates for buildings range generally from
three to 40 years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful lives or the remaining lease term, whichever is
shorter. Estimated useful lives of equipment vary from two to 15 years. Depreciation expense is not recorded for property and
equipment classified as held for sale. Repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Company separates capital expenditures into two categories, routine and development, in the accompanying consolidated
statements of cash flows. Purchases of routine property and equipment include expenditures at existing facilities that generally do not
result in increased capacity or the expansion of services. Development capital expenditures include expenditures for the development
of new facilities or the expansion of services or capacity at existing facilities.

Long-lived assets

The Company reviews the carrying value of certain long-lived assets and finite-lived intangible assets with respect to any events
or circumstances that indicate an impairment or an adjustment to the amortization period is necessary. If circumstances suggest that
the recorded amounts cannot be recovered based upon estimated future undiscounted cash flows, the carrying values of such assets are
reduced to fair value.

In assessing the carrying values of long-lived assets, the Company estimates future cash flows at the lowest level for which there
are independent, identifiable cash flows. For this purpose, these cash flows are aggregated based upon the contractual agreements
underlying the operation of the facility or group of facilities. Generally, an individual facility for hospitals is considered the lowest
level for which there are independent, identifiable cash flows. However, to the extent that groups of facilities are leased under a master
lease agreement in which the operations of a facility and compliance with the lease terms are interdependent upon other facilities in
the agreement (including the Company’s ability to renew the lease or divest a particular property), the Company defines the group of
facilities under a master lease agreement, or a renewal bundle in a master lease, as the lowest level for which there are independent,
identifiable cash flows. Accordingly, the estimated cash flows of all facilities within a master lease agreement, or within a renewal
bundle in a master lease, are aggregated for purposes of evaluating the carrying values of long-lived assets.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily originated from business combinations accounted for as purchase
transactions or from the Lifepoint Transaction.

A summary of goodwill by reporting unit follows (in thousands):

Specialty Community
hospitals hospitals Total
Balances, December 31, 2021 ..... $ - $ 107,600 $ 107,600
ACqUISIHIONS ...cveveeeeeererenenne - - -
Balances, December 31, 2022..... - 107,600 107,600
ACqQUISItIONS ..eeevveeeeiieciieiiene 26,109 — 26,109

Balances, December 31, 2023 ..... $ 26,109 $ 107,600 $ 133,709

In accordance with ASC 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, the Company is required to perform an impairment test for
goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually or more frequently if adverse events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the asset may be impaired. The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment test on October 1 each fiscal year for
each of its reporting units.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

A reporting unit is either an operating segment or one level below the operating segment, referred to as a component. When the
components within the Company’s operating segments have similar economic characteristics, the Company aggregates the
components of its operating segments into one reporting unit. Accordingly, the Company has determined that its reporting units are
specialty hospitals and community hospitals.

Accounting guidance allows the Company to perform a qualitative assessment about the likelihood of the carrying value of a
reporting unit exceeding its fair value, referred to as the step zero assessment. The step zero assessment requires the evaluation of
certain qualitative factors, including macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors and overall financial
performance, as well as company and reporting unit factors. If the Company’s step zero assessment indicates that it is more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value amount, then the Company would perform a quantitative
impairment test. The Company applied the step zero assessment to its community hospitals as of October 1, 2023. The Company’s
step zero assessment concluded it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value amount.

The Company relies on the widely accepted valuation technique of the discounted cash flow approach which captures both the
future income potential of the reporting unit and actions of market participants in the industry that includes the reporting unit. This
type of analyses requires the Company to make assumptions and estimates regarding future cash flows, industry-specific economic
factors and the profitability of future business strategies. The discounted cash flow approach uses a projection of estimated operating
results and cash flows that are discounted using a weighted average cost of capital. Under the discounted cash flow approach, the
projection uses management’s best estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period including growth rates in
the number of facilities, reimbursement rates, operating costs, rent expense, and capital expenditures. Other significant estimates and
assumptions include terminal value growth rates, changes in working capital requirements and weighted average cost of capital.

Adverse changes in the operating environment and related key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the Company’s
reporting units and indefinite-lived intangible assets may result in future impairment charges for a portion or all of these assets.
Specifically, if the rate of growth of government and commercial revenues earned by the Company’s reporting units were to be less
than projected, if healthcare reforms were to negatively impact the Company’s business, or if recent increases in labor costs materially
exceed the Company’s projections in its reporting units, an impairment charge of a portion or all of these assets may be required. An
impairment charge could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial position and results of operations, but
would not be expected to have an impact on the Company’s cash flows or liquidity.

The Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 consist of certificates of need and licenses.
The fair values of the Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets are derived from projections at a facility, which include
management’s best estimates of economic and market conditions over the projected period. Significant assumptions include projected
revenues, operating costs, rent expense, capital expenditures, terminal value growth rates, changes in working capital requirements,
weighted average cost of capital and opportunity costs.

The Company performs its annual indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment tests on October 1 each fiscal year. Based upon
the results of the annual impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets discussed above for the periods ended December 31,
2023 or 2022, no impairment charges were recorded.

The Company’s intangible assets as of December 31, 2023 also included physician contracts and a trade name with finite lives.
The Company’s intangible assets as of December 31, 2022 included physician contracts with finite lives. Each of the intangible assets
were amortized in accordance with the authoritative guidance for intangible assets using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The amortization of trade names is recorded as a component of depreciation and amortization expense and was
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The amortization of physician contracts is recorded as a component of other
operating expenses and was $0.8 million for both years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Goodwill and intangible assets (Continued)

A summary of intangible assets at December 31 follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Weighted Weighted
average average
Accumulated Carrying remaining Accumulated Carrying remaining
Cost amortization value life Cost amortization value life
Non-current:
Certificates of need............. $ 5349 % - $ 5,349 indefinite $ 5,590 $ - $ 5590 indefinite
Licenses......ccoovvvevvveeeennnnn. 2,229 - 2,229  indefinite 2,229 - 2,229  indefinite
Physician contracts............. 3,326 (1,298) 2,028 2 years 4,287 (2,356) 1,931 2 years
Trade name.......c.cccceeevuennee 2,600 (238) 2,362 9 years - - -
$ 13,504 $ (1,536) $ 11,968 $ 12,106 $ (2,356) $ 9,750

Cost-method investments

The aggregate carrying amount of our cost-method investments was $6.0 million as of both December 31, 2023 and 2022 and is
recorded as a component of other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The investments were evaluated
for impairment, and no impairment charges were recorded as of December 31, 2023 or 2022.

Insurance risks

Provisions for loss for professional liability and workers’ compensation risks are based upon management’s best available
information, including actuarially determined estimates of loss. To the extent that expected ultimate claims costs vary from historical
provisions for loss, future earnings will be charged or credited. See Note 7.

Share-based compensation

The Company recorded compensation expense of $0.7 million and $0.6 million for service-vesting profit units for the years
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, as reported in salaries, wages and benefits in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations.

Noncontrolling interests

Noncontrolling interests represent the portion of equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company.
The Company’s accompanying consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses at their
consolidated amounts, which include the amounts attributable to the Company and the noncontrolling interests. The Company
recognizes as a separate component of earnings that portion of income or loss attributable to noncontrolling interests based upon the
portions of the entities not owned by the Company.

Certain of the Company’s noncontrolling interests include redemption features that cause these interests not to meet the
requirements for classification as equity in accordance with ASC 480-10-S99-3, Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity. Redemption
features related to these interests could require the Company to deliver cash, if exercised. The Company uses the private company
accounting standards and records redeemable equity instruments as permanent equity. Accordingly, these redeemable noncontrolling
interests are classified in the Company’s accompanying consolidated balance sheets as “Noncontrolling interests — redeemable”.
Changes in the fair value of the Company’s redeemable noncontrolling interests are recognized as adjustments to consolidated
stockholders’ equity (deficit).

Variable interest entities

The Company follows the provisions of ASC 810, Consolidation, for determining whether an entity is a variable interest entity
(“VIE”). In order to determine if the Company is a primary beneficiary of a VIE for financial reporting purposes, it must consider
whether it has the power to direct activities of the VIE that most significantly impact the performance of the VIE and whether the
Company has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive returns that would be significant to the VIE. The Company
consolidates a VIE when it is the primary beneficiary.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)
Variable interest entities (Continued)

The Company had two specialty hospital and two community hospital partnerships as of December 31, 2023 and one specialty
hospital and two community hospital partnerships as of December 31, 2022, that were subject to an operating and management
services agreement. Under GAAP, the Company determined each of these partnerships qualify as VIEs and concluded that the
Company is the primary beneficiary in all of the partnerships. The Company holds an ownership interest and acts as manager in each
of the partnerships. Through the management services agreement, the Company is delegated necessary responsibilities to provide
management services, administrative services, and direction of the day-to-day operations. Based upon the Company’s assessment of
the most significant activities of the hospitals, the manager has the ability to direct the majority of those activities in all of the
partnerships.

The analysis upon which the consolidation determination rests can be complex, can involve uncertainties, and requires judgment
on various matters, some of which could be subject to different interpretations.

The carrying amounts and classifications of the assets and liabilities of the consolidated VIEs are as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2023 2022
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............ccoecveeieriieienierieieee e $ 1,936 $ 9,802
ACCOUNtS TECEIVADIE......ccuvviiiiiiiceeee e 70,121 58,655
TNVENTOTIES ..o 11,714 12,150
OthET .t 8,909 8,303
92,680 88,910
Property and equipment, Net.........cccoevvvevvieieeienienieeieeie e 49,656 51,949
Intangible aSSets, Nt .......cccveeriierieeiie et 2,567 2,716
Operating lease right-0f-use assets.........cccecverereeeieeiiiieeiee e 48,211 8,851
OB ..ttt 1,758 1,625
TOtAl @SSELS....eeivieieieeeee ettt $ 194,872 $ 154,051
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable...........occiiuioveiiiieieeciieeeeeee e $ 24,379 § 20,365
Salaries, wages and other compensation.............cccceeeveeverveennen. 14,932 15,108
Operating lease liabilities — current portion...............cceeeveenenne. 2,191 3,063
Other accrued HabilitieS .......c..vvvivviiiieiieeceeeceeee e 3,561 3,047
Finance lease obligations due within one year..............cccueeue.. 679 275
45,742 41,858
Finance lease obligations — long-term.............ccccoeceeveenienieniennenne. 2,962 1,214
Operating lease liabilities — long-term ............cceeeeveererrenenenne. 47,073 7,307
Deferred credits and other iabiliti€s ..........ooovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeiees 3,333 3,270
Total HADIIITIES ...t $ 99,110  $ 53,649

Other information

The Company performed evaluations of subsequent events through April 5, 2024, the date on which the accompanying
consolidated financial statements were issued.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 2 - ACQUISITIONS

During 2023, the Company acquired 15 specialty hospitals, eight senior living locations, and one behavioral health unit from
Cornerstone Healthcare Group (“Cornerstone Healthcare”) for $101.5 million. The fair value of this acquisition was measured
primarily using discounted cash flow methodologies which are considered Level 3 inputs (as described in Note 14). One of the senior
living locations was sold in 2023 as discussed in Note 3. The remaining seven senior living locations are reported in discontinued
operations. See Note 4.

The following is the preliminary purchase price allocation (in thousands):

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS.........ccvieviiiiiieeiieciie et sre e $ 24,087
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE ... 53,501
) I 110 & = PR 2,346
OhET CUITENT ASSELS ..uvvvvviiieieeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e eenaaeeeeeeeeas 3,653
Property and equipment, NEt ..........cccveevieeriieeiieeiieeiee ettt 118,888
Identifiable intangible assets:

Trade name (10-year [ife) .......ccovierieiiiieieeie e 2,600
Operating lease right-0f-use asSetS........cccevvieriieriiieiiieie e 15,335
Other 10NZ-1erM ASSELS......ccveriieriieiieieeiierieeie ettt sre e eee e seeeseenns 397
ACCOUNLS PAYADIC .....eevvieiiieiieiiececteete et (25,230)
Salaries, wages and other compensation .............ccecveeveeiereerieenieseeseeseeennes (14,695)
Operating lease liabilities — current portion .............cceevvevveeeeeereeseeseereenenns (2,771)
Other accrued Habilities .........c.oviervieriieiieierieie et (26,488)
Long-term debt due Within ONe Year ...........ccceevevieriierieeieeie e (3,995)
Long-term debt........cccvieiiiieiieciecie e (58,926)
Operating lease liabilities — loN-term .........c..cceevvierienieriieieeie e (12,564)
Deferred credits and other Habilities .........c.cccvevierierieicieiieeee e (7,507)
Noncontrolling interests — nonredeemable...........cccveeveveiiiienienieiiieieeieen, (11,052)

Total identifiable NEt ASSELS .....cccvviviieieeeeieeeeeee et 57,579
GOOAWILL ..t 43,881
INEE ASSEES ..t ettt et e et e et e e e et e e eeaee e e e e eeeaeeeeans $ 101,460

Simultaneous to the close of the transaction with Cornerstone Healthcare, ScionHealth sold the behavioral health unit to
Lifepoint for $35.0 million. The following table summarizes the impact of the net assets transferred to Lifepoint for this transaction (in
thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents...........cccoerieiieiiiiereeeee e $ (186)
ACCOUNTS TECRIVADIE ...ttt et et en (2,032)
TNVEINEOTIES. .. i ettt ettt ettt ettt e e e b e e e b e e s sbeeeaseessbeeesseessbeaenneennne 31)
Other CUITENT ASSELS ....uvieiurieieiieieiieiieeeiteesiteeetteesreesteeestbeesaeeeseaeesseeeseseeseeenees (126)
Property and equipment, NEt ............ocueeierierieiieeee e (16,396)
GOOAWILL ..ttt et e st e e e e be e e e e eabeaeaeeenes (17,772)
Operating lease right-0f-USe aSSetS.........cevieruieriirieiieiiee e (5,458)
AcCOUNLS PAYADIC .....oeeiiieiiieiieie e 1,321
Salaries, wages and other COMPENSation ..........c.ccoeverererenereeeeeeieieeenen 160
Operating lease liabilities — current POrtion ...........cecceeeeeeverieneneneneneeeenn 185
Other accrued Habilities ...........ccocveviviiiniiiiiicccce 62
Operating lease liabilities — loNG-tETMN .......eeeeveeviiieeiiieiiieeie e 5,273
Net assets transferred to Lifepoint...........cccoevvevvieviieienienieeieeiecieenens $ (35,000)
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 3 - DIVESTITURES
Continuing operations

During 2023, the Company sold a medical office building for $43.5 million in cash and recorded a gain, net of transaction costs,
of $37.0 million in restructuring charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31,
2023. See Note 5 and Note 9.

Discontinued operations
During 2023, the Company sold a senior living location for $6.0 million in cash. No gain or loss was recognized on the
transaction.
NOTE 4 - DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

In accordance with the authoritative guidance for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, the divestiture of businesses
has been accounted for as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the results of operations of these have been classified as discontinued
operations, net of income taxes, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the periods presented.

During 2023, the eight senior living locations acquired from Cornerstone Healthcare were reported in discontinued operations.
One of the locations was sold in 2023 and the remaining seven locations were held for sale as of December 31, 2023.

A summary of discontinued operations follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
REVENUES ...ttt $ 19980 $ 86
Salaries, wages and benefits .........cccevvvevieeiiiiiie e 10,306 (1,170)
SUPPIICS. ..ttt e e 3,116 8
Building 1Nt .....ccvieiiiiiiieciieeieecieece et 12 -
EqQUipment T€Nt.......cccceeviieiieeie et 107 ()
Other operating eXpenses (INCOME)......c..cevveeecreerveerreesveennnans 6,495 (1,476)
Other INCOME .....veieeiieiiieciee ettt seae s (50) (250)
Restructuring charges ..........ccoceveeiieienienieeee e 211 -
Depreciation and amortization ............c.eeeeeeeriereeneeneeeeeneeene 1,390 -
INLETESt EXPENSE. ..ottt 418 -
22,005 (2,896)
Income (loss) from operations before income taxes ............... (2,025) 2,982
Provision for iNCOME taXes........coueeuerieieienenieneeieeeeieieeenes - -
Income (10ss) from OPerations ...........c.eecveeveerreervereeseerieenennn (2,025) 2,982
Earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests .................... - -
Income (loss) attributable to ScionHealth ......................... $ (2,025) $ 2,982

A summary of the net assets held for sale at December 31, 2023 follows (in thousands):

Property and equipment, Net...........cccvevveveieiiereenieieeie e $§ 31,035

Long-term debt due within one year ..........ccccceevvieriveniienieennnnn. (340)

Long-term debt.......ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeee e (13,907)
§ 16,788

NOTE 5 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES

The Company has initiated various restructuring activities whereby it has incurred costs associated with reorganizing its
operations, including the acquisition, divestiture, closure of facilities, reduced headcount and realigned operations in order to improve
operations, cost efficiencies and capital structure in response to changes in the healthcare industry, increasing leverage and to partially
mitigate reductions in reimbursement rates from third party payors. The costs associated with these activities are reported as
restructuring charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and would have been recorded as salaries, wages and
benefits, other operating expenses, or rent expense if not classified as restructuring charges.
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KNIGHT HEALTH HOLDINGS LLC (d/b/a SCIONHEALTH)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 5 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES (Continued)
The following table sets forth the restructuring charges incurred by restructuring activities (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022

Lifepoint TranSaCtion .........c.ccecvevivveeererieierieieeeereeeeie et $ 2,660 $ 11,379
Specialty Hospital Division Reorganization..............cceeevvereenieeeenrenenne. 5,281 2,869
Specialty Hospital Portfolio Optimization Strategy 2021 Plan ................. 4,294 4,540
Cornerstone Healthcare TranSaction..............ccceeeeeeveeeecieeeeiieeeeeeeee e 8,285 8,440
Deconsolidation of Variable Interest Entity ..........cccoocveevveiinieniiiieieiens 2,673 -
Gain on Sale of Medical Office Building ...........ccooceevieviieiinieiieieeienns (36,962) -
Loss on write-off of Information Technology Asset ..........cccoevvvrviervennnnns - 28,777
(011115 72V (011 SRR 6,409 2,860

$ (7,360) $ 58,865

Restructuring Activities
Lifepoint Transaction
The costs incurred in 2023 and 2022 related to the Lifepoint Transaction included transaction, retention and severance costs, and

a loss on the sale of an assisted living facility and were substantially completed in 2022.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company has incurred for these restructuring initiatives is as follows (in

thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
TTanSACOMN COSES ....vviuviimiiieieieieeeeeeee et eeee et eee e ene $ 2,100 $ 4,676
Retention and SEVErance COStS .........oeevivvievvreeeeeieiiiiiieeeeeeenns 560 2,814
LSS 0N SALE ..eoiiiiiiiiiiieee e . - 3,889
$ 2,660 $ 11,379

The following table (in thousands) summarizes the Lifepoint Transaction liability activity (included in current liabilities), which
does not include $3.9 million related to the loss on sale:

Retention and

Transaction severance
costs costs Total

Liability balance at December 31, 2021 .....c.ccoevvivieveerieieeeenne. $ 2,884 $ 19,949 § 22,833

EXPENSE 1.ttt 4,676 2,814 7,490

PAYMENLS ...oviiiiiiieiicie ettt e (7,198) (20,823) (28,021)
Liability balance at December 31, 2022 ........cccoeevevvieveerieeieeeenne. 362 1,940 2,302

EXPENSE c.vvieiiieeiieeie et 2,100 560 2,660

PAYMENLS ...oviiiiiiieiicie ettt e (2,462) (1,919) (4,381)
Liability balance at December 31, 2023 ........cccocvveeieieiereienene $ - $ 581 § 581

Specialty Hospital Division Reorganization
During 2022, the Company initiated a restructuring plan to improve operations and cost efficiencies in the specialty hospital
division. The activities related to the specialty hospital division reorganization were substantially completed in 2023.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company has incurred for this reorganization is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
Retention and SEVErance COStS........oovvverviererenieeeneeeiiieesneeenns $ 5,175 $ 2,817
TranSaction COSES ......ccvierriririeriieiieeereeereeereeeeaeeeereeeeree e 106 -
L0sS 0n diSposal ......cceeerieieiiiieniinineceeeeceee e - 52
$ 5,281 $ 2,869
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 5 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES (Continued)
Restructuring Activities (Continued)
Specialty Hospital Division Reorganization (Continued)

The following table (in thousands) summarizes the Company’s specialty hospital division reorganization liability activity
(included in current liabilities):
Retention and

severance Transaction
costs costs Total

Liability balance at December 31, 2021........ccoovvvrvrriennnene. $ - S - 5 -

EXPONSC..ciiuiiiiiiieiii it 2,817 - 2,817

Payments.......cccueeviiiiiieniieeece e (260) - (260)
Liability balance at December 31, 2022.........cccoevvveveeiennns 2,557 - 2,557

EXPONSC..ciiuiiiiiiiiiie ettt 5,175 106 5,281

Payments.......cocueeviiiiiieiiieieeeceee e (6,233) (106) (6,339)
Liability balance at December 31, 2023..........ccocovvevieviennens $ 1,499 $ — $ 1,499

Specialty Hospital Portfolio Optimization Strategy 2021 Plan

During 2021, Kindred approved the specialty hospital portfolio optimization strategy 2021 plan that incorporated the closure of
certain specialty hospitals. The Company closed three specialty hospitals during 2021 and one sub-acute unit within a specialty
hospital during 2022. The activities related to the specialty hospital portfolio optimization strategy 2021 plan were substantially
completed in 2023.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company incurred for these activities is as follows (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
TTanSACON COSES ....vviviiuiiieieieeeeeeeeeeeeee et ens $ 3294  § 4,051
ASSEt WITEE-OTT ..o 1,000 -
Retention and SEVETance COStS ........coueevuirivreeeireeereeereeereennne 489
$ 4294 $ 4,540

The following table (in thousands) summarizes the Company’s specialty hospital portfolio optimization strategy 2021 plan
liability activity (included in current liabilities), which does not include $1.0 million related to asset write-off:

Retention and

Transaction severance
costs costs Total

Liability balance at December 31, 2021.......c.ccevveieierenene. $ 178  $ 42 3 220

EXPEONSE..ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 4,051 489 4,540

Payments.......ccovieiieiiiie e (4,094) (428) (4,522)
Liability balance at December 31, 2022........cccoevveieeiennnne 135 103 238

EXPEONSE..ciiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 3,294 - 3,294

Payments.......ccoovieiieiiiie e (3,429) (103) (3,532)
Liability balance at December 31, 2023.........ccccvevievevvenennene. $ - 3 - 3 -

Cornerstone Healthcare Transaction

During 2023, the Company acquired Cornerstone Healthcare as described in Note 2. The activities related to the Cornerstone
Healthcare transaction are expected to be substantially completed in 2024.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company has incurred for the Cornerstone Healthcare transaction is as follows
(in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
TTanSaCtioN COSES ......ceiiiieereeriereeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeteere e $ 4,812 $ 8,440
SEVEIANCE COSES....uuuiriiiiieeieiiiirieieeeeeeecitire e e e eeeeetare e e e e e e eeeannees 3,473 —
$ 8,285 $ 8,440
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 5 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES (Continued)
Restructuring Activities (Continued)
Cornerstone Healthcare Transaction (Continued)

The following table (in thousands) summarizes the Company’s Cornerstone Healthcare transaction liability activity (included in
current liabilities):

Transaction Severance
costs costs Total

Liability balance at December 31, 2021........ccccecvvevvvvenenne. $ - $ - $ -

EXPONSC..eiiiiiiiiieiieeiie ettt 8,440 - 8,440

Payments.......ccccvieiiieiiiecieecie e (2,496) - (2,496)
Liability balance at December 31, 2022........c.ccccvvevvvrenenne. 5,944 - 5,944

EXPONSC..ciciiiiiiieiii ettt 4,812 3,473 8,285

Payments.......cccueeeiiiiiiiniieie e (10,657) (3,473) (14,130)
Liability balance at December 31, 2023.........cccveveverrennnnnne. $ 9 3 - S 99

Deconsolidation of Variable Interest Entity

During 2023, the Company sold its share of a joint venture identified as a VIE to the noncontrolling interest partner. The
activities related to the deconsolidation of the VIE were substantially completed in 2023.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company has incurred for the deconsolidation of the VIE is as follows (in
thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
ASSEt WITEE-OTE ..o $ 3,705 § -
TranSaction COSES ......iivuiiiiiiiieeitreeeee et eeeeeetee e eeare e 51 -
Working capital settlement............ccccvevveriinienieriieieeieens (1,083) -
$ 2,673 $ -

Gain on Sale of Medical Office Building

During 2023, the Company sold a medical office building resulting in a gain, net of transaction costs, of $37.0 million as
described in Note 3 and Note 9. The activities related to the sale were substantially completed in 2023.
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NOTE 5 - RESTRUCTURING CHARGES (Continued)
Restructuring Activities (Continued)
Loss on write-off of Information Technology Asset

During 2022, the Company recorded a write-down of assets and runout costs related to a contract with a vendor to develop an
electronic medical record (“EMR”) system. Based on an EMR evaluation with the help of a third party consulting firm, it was
determined that the risk and cost to continue investing in the EMR system exceeded that of pursuing commercially available EMR
products on the market. The activities related to the loss on write-off of information technology asset were substantially completed in
2023.

The composition of the restructuring charges the Company has incurred for the loss on write-off of information technology asset

is as follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
ASSEt WITE-AOWI.....oviviieieeieie e $ - 3 24,964
Contract TUNOUL COSES..vvviiriiiiiiirrireeeeeeeiiiiereeeeeeeeeerreeeeeeeeenens — 3,813
$ - 3 28,777

The following table (in thousands) summarizes the Company’s information technology contract runout liability activity

(included in current liabilities):
Contract runout

costs
Liability balance at December 31, 2021 .......ccccvevevieeiieniiecieeiie e $ -
EXPONISE....eiiiiiiieeee e 3,813
Payments.......coocuiiiiiiieeee e s -
Liability balance at December 31, 2022........cccccvevieiieienieiieieeieeiens 3,813
EXPONSE....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e -
PaYMENTS. ...cveieiiiiiie e e 3,813)
Liability balance at December 31, 2023..........ccocvieieieieieieieieieneen $ -
NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES
Provision for income taxes consists of the following (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,
2023 2022
Current:
Federal.......coooveveviieeeieeeeecccee e, $ - S -
SEALE. ..o 1,489 959
1,489 959
Deferred......cooooeviiiniiieeeeee 112 23
$ 1,601 $ 982

The Company’s effective income tax provision differs from the amount calculated using the statutory U.S. federal income tax

rate, principally due to the following (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022

Income tax benefit at federal rate .........ccoocveveeririiiienienieces $ (45,841) $ (54,011)
State income tax benefit, net of federal income tax benefit.......... (9,823) (11,574)
Noncontrolling iNtErests .........cuevverierieriieieeiereeee e 4,436 6,088
Cornerstone Healthcare transaction COStS.........cceeveveerveenieenneeens - 1,722
Nondeductible PAYMENts .........ccceeeeveiiiiinininenceieecrecee e (1,339) (4,960)
Valuation alloWancCe............ccveeeueieciieeiieeeiiecie e 61,256 61,294
Deferred tax adjustment ...........ceeeveeieriereeseeie e (8,225) -
Cornerstone Healthcare acquiSition...........ccceeveerveerierieneenieeene (5,106) -
Disposition of nondeductible goodwill..........ccccoceveririniiiicnenins 5,082 -
Other IteMS, NET......iiiiiiiiiecie ettt e 1,161 2,423

$ 1,601 $ 982
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 6 — INCOME TAXES (Continued)

A summary of net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) by source included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
December 31 follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Property and eqUIpMENt...........c.c.ccveveveeeiereriereereeeeeereeenans $ - $ 96999 3§ - $ 93,760
FINance L€aSES......ccoviiiiiieeeeeeee e 143,226 61,808 178,088 89,147
Doubtful aCCOUNTS ....veviiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 25,255 - 14,200 -
COMPENSALION....eieeiieiiieiie et eieeeieeeieeereeeaeeereesreeseneas 17,805 - 14,197 -
Professional liability and workers’ compensation risks ... 20,381 - 9,497 -
Net 0perating IoSSES .....vveevieiveeeiieeeiieeiee e eieeeiee e 39,969 - 20,788 -
INVESTMENTS ..oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiece e 4,668 - 7,185 -
Interest HMItAtioNn .......evveeiiiiiieiieiieeeeecceeeeee e 34,856 - 12,057 -
Assets held for sale.........ooovvvvieiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeee, 1,095 - - 1,148
Other ItemMS, NEL ...oooveeiiiiieieeceeeeeee e 7,018 - 2,363 -

Gross deferred tax assets/liabilities ........cccccoeevvvernnen.. 294,273 $ 158,807 258,375 $ 184,055

Reclassification of deferred tax liabilities ..................... (158,807) (184,055)

Net deferred tax before valuation allowance.................. 135,466 74,320

Less valuation allowance (cumulative) ...........c.ccuen...... (135,667) (74,411)

Net deferred taX.......c.coeeevieiiiiiieiceieeeee e $ (201) $ 91)

Management assesses all available positive and negative evidence to determine whether a valuation allowance is needed against
its deferred tax assets. The authoritative guidance requires evidence related to events that have actually happened to be weighted more
significantly than evidence that is projected or expected to happen. A significant piece of negative evidence according to this
weighting standard is if there are cumulative losses in the two most recent years and the current year, which was the case for the
Company at both December 31, 2023 and 2022. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance was recorded during the years ended
December 31, 2023 and 2022. The amount of deferred tax asset considered realizable, however, could be adjusted if the weighting of
the positive and negative evidence changes.

The Company’s valuation allowance was $135.7 million and $74.4 million at December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The Company identified deferred tax assets for federal income tax net operating losses (“NOLs”) of $31.7 million (tax effected
at 21%) at December 31, 2023, with a corresponding deferred income tax valuation allowance of $31.7 million. The Company
identified deferred tax assets for federal income tax NOLs of $17.3 million (tax effected at 21%) at December 31, 2022, with a
corresponding deferred income tax valuation allowance of $17.3 million. The federal income tax NOLs do not expire. The Company
had deferred income tax assets for state income tax NOL’s of $8.3 million at December 31, 2023, with a corresponding deferred
income tax valuation allowance of $8.3 million. The Company had deferred income tax assets for state income tax NOL’s of
$3.5 million at December 31, 2022, with a corresponding deferred income tax valuation allowance of $3.5 million.

The Company does not currently have any uncertain tax liabilities.

The Company filed its first federal and state income tax returns as of December 31, 2021. The state statute of limitations
generally ranges between three and five years from the time of filing.

NOTE 7 - INSURANCE RISKS

On a per-claim basis for the Company’s specialty hospitals, the Company maintains a self-insured retention and Cornerstone
Insurance insures all losses in excess of this retention. Cornerstone Insurance maintains commercial reinsurance through unaffiliated
commercial reinsurers for these losses in excess of the Company’s retention. On a per-claim basis, the Company maintains self-
insured retention under commercial insurance policies for community hospitals for professional and general liability and first dollar
coverage for physicians’ risks and Cornerstone Insurance insures all losses in excess of those policy limits. The Company also
maintains a deductible under commercial insurance policies for workers’ compensation which provide coverage up to statutory limits
in each state. The provisions for loss for professional and general liability and workers’ compensation risks are based upon
management’s best available information, including actuarially determined estimates of loss.
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NOTE 7 - INSURANCE RISKS (Continued)

The allowance for professional and general liability risks includes an estimate of the expected cost to settle reported claims and
an amount, based upon past experiences, for losses incurred but not reported including claims related to its former nursing center
operations. These liabilities are necessarily based upon estimates and, while management believes that the provision for loss is
adequate, the ultimate liability may be in excess of, or less than, the amounts recorded. To the extent that expected ultimate claims
costs vary from historical provisions for loss, future earnings will be charged or credited.

In connection with the Lifepoint Reorganization, the Company received the historical provisions for professional and general
liability and workers’ compensation losses of $40.3 million and $2.7 million, respectively, related to the community hospitals and a
related indemnity for professional and general liability and workers” compensation of $40.3 million and $2.7 million, respectively,
from Lifepoint for those losses as of December 31, 2023. As of December 31, 2022, the historical provisions for professional and
general liability and workers” compensation losses related to the community hospitals were $60.8 million and $4.1 million,
respectively, and a related indemnity for professional and general liability and workers’ compensation of $60.8 million and
$4.1 million, respectively, from Lifepoint for those losses. Lifepoint maintains responsibility for the management and settlement of
these claims and will provide adjustments to the Company at each actuarial review.

The provision for loss for insurance risks, including the cost of coverage maintained with unaffiliated commercial reinsurance
and insurance carriers, follows (in thousands):
Year ended December 31,

2023 2022
Professional liability:
Continuing operations...............c..cv...... $ 63,767  $ 42,919
Discontinued operations ............cc..c....... 127 (1,199)
Workers’ compensation:
Continuing operations..................ccv..... $ 17,234 § 14,230
Discontinued operations ........................ (1,641) (1,170)

A summary of the assets and liabilities related to insurance risks included in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at
December 31 follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Professional Workers’ Professional Workers’
liability compensation Total liability compensation Total
Assets:
Current:
Insurance subsidiary investments ...... $ 34 $ 539 $ 573 $ 1,000 $ 669 $ 1,669
Reinsurance and other recoverables .. 2,115 2,809 4,924 2,043 2,608 4,651
Other ..o - 608 608 - 1,331 1,331
2,149 3,956 6,105 3,043 4,608 7,651
Non-current:
Insurance subsidiary investments ...... - 4,900 4,900 6,154 8,124 14,278
Reinsurance and other recoverables .. 125,271 33,895 159,166 161,894 39,380 201,274
Deposits ...cocveeieiieiieiee e — 1,593 1,593 - 1,593 1,593
125271 40,388 165,659 168,048 49,097 217,145
$ 127,420 $ 44344 $ 171,764 $ 171,091 $ 53,705 $ 224,796
Liabilities:
Allowance for insurance risks:
CUITent.....oooviiiieeciieeeeee e $ 47,265 $ 12,693 $ 59,958 $ 46,736 $ 14,562 $ 61,298
NON-CUITENT......ccvvieeiiieeiieeeieecreeeaieas 219,099 54,879 273,978 234,899 57,797 292,696

§ 266364 § 67,572 § 333,936 § 281,635 $§ 72359 § 353,994

The provision for loss for professional liability risks is not funded to Cornerstone Insurance. The Company does not fund the
portion of professional liability risks related to estimated claims that have been incurred but not reported.

The provision for loss for workers’ compensation risks is not funded to Cornerstone Insurance.
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NOTE 8 - INSURANCE SUBSIDIARY INVESTMENTS

The Company maintains a portfolio of insurance subsidiary investments, consisting principally of cash and cash equivalents, for
the payment of claims and expenses related to professional liability and workers’ compensation risks maintained by Cornerstone
Insurance. These investments are reported at fair value. Since the Company’s insurance subsidiary investments are restricted for a
limited purpose, they are classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets based upon the expected current and long-term
cash requirements of Cornerstone Insurance.

The Company’s insurance subsidiary’s cash and cash equivalents of $5.5 million and $15.9 million as of December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, are classified as insurance subsidiary investments in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Investment income earned by Cornerstone Insurance was minimal for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE 9 - LEASES
Finance leases

Finance lease obligations are comprised of real estate and equipment. A summary of finance lease obligations at December 31
follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Finance 1€aSe ODLIZAIONS .......c.ecviiuiiiiieitieie ettt ettt ettt eae e ens $ 333,248 $ 330,021
Amounts due Within ONE YEAT .......ccccuiieiieiiieeieeiiee ettt et eveeeae e veesaeesbeesaseesebeesaneens (7,819) (11,994)
Total finance 1ease ODIIZAtIONS ..........ccuiiuiieiieciieie ettt ettt $ 325,429 $ 318,027

The weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate for the Company’s finance leases as of December 31 were as

follows:
2023 2022

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years) .........cceeeeeeveenenenne 16.8 13.3
Weighted average diSCOUNt 1ate ..........cceveeivieeiieiiieeieecieeciee e 10.9% 8.7%

The following table summarizes scheduled maturities of finance lease obligations (in thousands):

2024 .o $ 7,819
2025 e 9,210
2026 ..o 9,271
2027 e 8,204
2028 ..o 6,763
Thereafter .......ocovviieeiieeie e 291,981

$ 333,248

Operating leases

The Company has operating leases for its facilities, including specialty hospitals that generally have an initial lease term of five
years, with two, five-year renewal options and community hospitals that have operating leases mostly related to medical office
buildings and other ancillary properties with various terms.

The Company’s building rent expense was as follows for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2023 2022
OPETAtING [EASE COST....viurimtitirtietiiieeii ettt ettt bbbttt et et beseeebe e $ 160,920 $ 156,519
SHOTt-TEIMN 1€ASE COSL...viiiuriiiiiiiiieeiii ettt ettt ettt e et e et e eteeebeeebeeebeeeabeeeaseesabeesnseeenns 6,162 6,891
Variable 18SE COST..uviiiiiiiiiiiiiieiec ettt ettt e et e e abeeteeetaeebeeebeeeabeeenseeenneas 6,058 3,000
Amortization of leasehold interest assets and liabilities, N€t ..........cccoeveeviererieriereeeeee. (29,899) (30,327)
L 3313 PSSR 3,733 3,761

$ 146,974  § 139,844
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NOTE 9 — LEASES (Continued)
Operating leases (Continued)

Supplemental cash flow information related to the Company’s operating leases at December 31 follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities............ccccceeveveennnenn. $ 169,359 $ 168,991
Non-cash right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for lease liabilities.............cccceevverrennne.. 38,005 103,000

Supplemental balance sheet information related to the Company’s operating leases with unrelated parties at December 31,
follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Operating lease right-0f-USe aSSEtS (@) ..ecvvivreeeiieiiiieeiie e ettt sre e srre e esaeeeneees $ 340,590 $ 419,540
Operating lease liabilities — CUITENT POTTION ......eovvevievieiiiiieereeie ettt $ 146,137 $ 137,267
Operating lease liabilities — lONG-tCIM.........cc.eeviiriiriieiieie et 205,887 300,949
Total operating 16ase Habilities.........ccvevieiirieriieieeie et $ 352,024 $ 438216

(a) These amounts do not include $3.4 million of prepaid rent, $15.0 million of leasehold interest assets, and $56.9 million of
leasehold interest liabilities included within the operating lease right-of-use assets in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets as of December 31, 2023, and $2.7 million of prepaid rent, $25.0 million of leasehold interest assets, and $97.6 million
of leasehold interest liabilities included within the operating lease right-of-use assets in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2022. The leasehold interest assets and liabilities are amortized using the straight-line
method over the lease term.

The weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate for the Company’s operating leases as of December 31 were as
follows:
2023 2022
Weighted average remaining lease term (in years)...........ccoeveeveeenenne. 5.0 3.7
Weighted average diSCOUNt rate .........ceevveeieeieeieeieniieieeie e 7.5% 7.1%

As of December 31, 2023, maturities of lease liabilities for the Company’s operating leases were as follows (in thousands):

2024t bbbt h ettt bt bt h bttt et e bt he st eneenee $ 168,723
2025 et a et b bt h e a et bt bt eh e bt e st e s et ettt he st et enee 92,719
2026, h ettt h e h e bttt b e bt h e bt n e st et e te bt ehe s eneenee 45,959
2027 et a ettt b bt h ettt bt bt a bt a e e st et ettt bt st et enee 39,958
2028 ettt h et bt bt h bt a et e b bt eh e b £ e st s et et et ehe s eneenee 20,273
TREIEATIET ... et e e e e s et e e e e e e eaeeeeans 80,615
Total undiscounted Cash fIOWS.........ccveviiiiiiiiiiieiieie e 448,247
LSS TMPULEA TNTETEST....veeuvieiiiiiieiiesiieieeie et eee ettt et e e et e et e sbeesbeeseesaessaesseesseeseenseeneenns (96,223)
Total discounted lease Habilities .. .......cccueeiiiiiiieiiie e $ 352,024

As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s future minimum lease obligations on long-term, non-cancelable operating leases were
as follows (in thousands):

Minimum payments

Ventas, Inc. Other Total
2024 oo aaa e $ 126,446 $ 42277 $ 168,723
2025 e a e e traaa s 58,596 34,123 92,719
2026 oot a e raaa s 24,500 21,459 45,959
2027 et e e e a e e abaaa s 24,500 15,458 39,958
2028 ettt e a e e abaaaeas 8,166 12,107 20,273
TRErafter.....uvvviiiiiiiceieee e — 80,615 80,615

$§ 242208 $ 206,039 § 448,247
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NOTE 9 — LEASES (Continued)
Operating leases (Continued)

The Company has various facility leases that include contingent annual rent escalators based upon a change in the Consumer
Price Index or other agreed upon terms such as a patient revenue test. These contingent rents are included in building rent expense in
the time period incurred. The Company recorded contingent rent of $5.0 million and $2.6 million, including both continuing
operations and discontinued operations, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Ventas Master Lease Agreement

At December 31, 2023, the Company leased from Ventas, Inc. (“Ventas™) and its affiliates 29 specialty hospitals under one
master lease agreement (the “Ventas Master Lease Agreement”). The Ventas Master Lease Agreement includes land, buildings,
structures, and other improvements on the land, easements, and similar appurtenances to the land and improvements, and permanently
affixed equipment, machinery, and other fixtures relating to the operation of the leased properties. There are two bundles of leased
properties under the Ventas Master Lease Agreement, with each bundle containing several specialty hospitals.

Rental amounts and escalators

The Ventas Master Lease Agreement is commonly known as a triple-net lease or an absolute-net lease. Accordingly, in addition
to rent, the Company is required to pay the following: (1) all insurance required in connection with the leased properties and the
business conducted on the leased properties; (2) certain taxes levied on or with respect to the leased properties (other than taxes on the
income of Ventas); and (3) all utilities and other services necessary or appropriate for the leased properties and the business conducted
on the leased properties.

The Company paid rents to Ventas of $132.9 million and $134.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

The Ventas Master Lease Agreement provides for rent escalations each May 1. All annual rent escalators are payable in cash.
The contingent annual rent escalator for the Ventas Master Lease Agreement is based upon annual increases in the Consumer Price
Index, subject to a ceiling of 4%. In 2023, the contingent annual rent escalator was 4% for the Ventas Master Lease Agreement. The
annual rent escalators are excluded from the operating lease liabilities.
Medical office building sale-leaseback

During 2023, the Company sold a medical office building for $43.5 million in cash and executed a twenty-year operating lease
of the building. In accordance with ASC 842, the Company accounted for the transaction as a sale and leaseback. As a result, the
Company recorded a gain, net of transaction costs, of $37.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2023.

Equipment rent

The Company recorded equipment rent expense of $28.5 million and $20.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt

A summary of long-term debt at December 31 follows (in thousands):
2023 2022

Term Loan Facility due 2028, net of unamortized original issue discount of
$8.0 million at December 31, 2023 and $9.6 million at December 31, 2022..... $ 433,005 $ 435,897

ABL FACTILY ..ottt ettt st 435,100 256,500
Term Loan Facility due 2026........cccooviieiiiiiieiiie e 47,151 -
ORCT ettt b e et a ettt ee s 14,247 -
Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization.............cceeeveeervierieeenieeneennne (12,621) (14,955)
Total debt, average life of 4 years (weighted average rate 9.0% for 2023 and

8.2%0 TOT 2022) ittt e e 916,882 677,442
Amounts due Within ONE YEAT .......cccueievuiiiiiiieiie ettt ereeebee e (6,236) (4,500)
LONG-EITN AEDE ....oviiviiiiiiiiiet ettt ettt ettt $ 910,646 $ 672,942
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Long-term debt (Continued)

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt (in thousands):

Term Loan Term Loan

Facility ABL Facility

due 2028 Facility due 2026 Other Total
2024 $ 4,500 $§ - 3 1,396 $ 340 S 6,236
2025 e 4,500 - 1,467 350 6,317
20260t 4,500 435,100 44,288 361 484,249
2027 et 4,500 - - 372 4,872
2028t e 423,000 - - 383 423,383
Thereafter....cccuvvviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee e, — — — 12,441 12,441

$§ 441,000 § 435,100 § 47,151 § 14247 § 937,498

See Note 9 for discussion of the Company’s finance lease obligations.

Credit Facilities

As used herein, the “Credit Facilities” refers collectively to the Term Loan Facility due 2028, the ABL Facility, the assumed
Term Loan Facility due 2026, and the HUD (as defined below) mortgages in each case as defined and described below.

Term Loan Facility due 2028

The “Term Loan Facility due 2028” refers to the Company’s $450 million term loan credit facility provided pursuant to the
terms and provisions of that certain Term Loan Credit Agreement dated as of December 23, 2021 and amended June 20, 2023, among
the Company, the lenders from time-to-time party thereto, and Barclays Bank PLC, as administrative agent and collateral agent. All
obligations under the Term Loan Facility due 2028 are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, subject to certain customary release
provisions, by substantially all of the Company’s wholly owned, domestic material subsidiaries (subject to certain designated
exceptions), as well as the Company’s immediate parent entity, plus any foreign or non-wholly owned domestic subsidiaries that the
Company may determine from time-to-time in its sole discretion (collectively, the “Guarantors”). The obligations under the Term
Loan Facility due 2028 are secured by substantially all of the assets of the Company and the Guarantors.

The Term Loan Facility due 2028 (1) matures on December 23, 2028; (2) amortizes annually at 1.00%, payable in quarterly
installments, which commenced on March 31, 2022; (3) imposes a variety of restrictions including restrictions on the Company’s
ability to incur debt and liens and make acquisitions, investments and payments on equity and junior debt; and (4) provides for interest
rate margins of 5.25% for Term Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“Term SOFR”) borrowings and 4.25% for base rate borrowings,
plus a Term SOFR adjustment, with a floor of 0.50%. The Term SOFR adjustment is 0.11448% for an interest period of one-month
duration, 0.26161% for an interest period of three-months duration, and 0.42826% for an interest period of six-months duration. The
Term Loan Facility due 2028 contains no financial maintenance covenants.

ABL Facility

The “ABL Facility” refers to the Company’s $550 million asset-based loan revolving credit facility provided pursuant to the
terms and provisions of that certain ABL Credit Agreement dated as of December 23, 2021 (the “ABL Credit Agreement”) and
amended January 20, 2023, among the Company, the lenders party thereto from time-to-time, and Barclays Bank PLC, as
administrative agent and collateral agent. All obligations under the ABL Facility are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, subject to
certain customary release provisions, by substantially all of the Company’s wholly owned, domestic material subsidiaries (subject to
certain designated exceptions), as well as the Company’s immediate parent entity, plus any foreign or non-wholly owned domestic
subsidiaries that the Company may determine from time-to-time in its sole discretion. The obligations under the ABL Facility are
secured by substantially the same collateral as the obligations under the Term Loan Facility due 2028. As of December 31, 2023,
$435.1 million of loans and $54.7 million of letters of credit were outstanding under the ABL Facility, and no amounts were drawn on
the letters of credit.
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Credit Facilities (Continued)
ABL Facility (Continued)

The ABL Facility (1) matures on December 23, 2026; (2) contains a financial maintenance covenant in the form of a springing
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio; (3) imposes a variety of restrictions including restrictions on the Company’s ability to incur
debt and liens and make acquisitions, investments and payments on equity and junior debt, particularly if the payment condition is not
satisfied; (4) provides for interest rate margins of 1.25% to 1.75% for Term SOFR borrowings and 0.25% to 0.75% for base rate
borrowings (in each case depending on average daily excess availability) plus a Term SOFR adjustment of 0.10%; and (5) employs a
borrowing base calculation to determine total available capacity thereunder.

In connection with the Cornerstone Healthcare acquisition, the Company entered into an amendment to the ABL Credit
Agreement (Incremental Assumption and Amendment Agreement No. 1) that, among other provisions, increased the size of the ABL
Facility by an aggregate principal amount of $66.7 million, which the Company drew against at closing. In addition, the Company
incurred incremental first-in-last-out (“FILO”) Revolving Loans that mature on January 20, 2026 and rank junior in right of payment
to the Initial Revolving Loans in an aggregate principal amount of $33.3 million. The interest rate margin for FILO Revolving Loans
is 3.75% per annum in the case of any Term Benchmark Revolving Loan and 2.75% per annum in the case of any ABR Loan.

Assumed Debt

Subsidiaries of the Company executed agreements to assume the obligations of certain existing long-term debt at Cornerstone
Healthcare, including (i) a Term Loan Facility and (ii) three mortgages secured by certain real property and insured by the U.S
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).

The assumed Term Loan Facility due 2026 (1) matures on July 22, 2026; (2) amortizes in monthly installments of
approximately $0.1 million; and (3) provides for interest rate margins of 2.25% for Base Rate Loans and 3.25% for Term SOFR
Loans.

The assumed HUD mortgages mature between 2048 and 2055.
The Company was in compliance with the terms of the Credit Facilities at December 31, 2023.

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES

Management continually evaluates contingencies based upon the best available information. In addition, allowances for losses
are provided currently for disputed items that have continuing significance, such as certain third party reimbursements and deductions
that continue to be claimed in current cost reports and tax returns.

Management believes that allowances for losses have been provided to the extent necessary and that its assessment of
contingencies is reasonable.

Principal contingencies are described below:

Revenues — Certain third party payments are subject to examination by agencies administering the various reimbursement
programs. The Company is contesting certain issues raised in audits of prior year cost reports and the denial of payment by third
parties to the Company’s customers.

Professional liability risks — The Company has provided for losses for professional liability risks based upon
management’s best available information including actuarially determined estimates. Ultimate claims costs may differ from the
provisions for loss. See Note 7.
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NOTE 11 - CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Legal and regulatory proceedings — The Company is a party to various legal actions and regulatory and other
governmental and internal audits and investigations in the ordinary course of business (including investigations resulting from
the Company’s obligation to self-report suspected violations of law). The Company cannot predict the ultimate outcome of
pending litigation and regulatory and other governmental and internal audits and investigations. The U.S. Department of Justice
(the “DOJ”), the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) or other federal and state enforcement and regulatory
agencies may conduct additional investigations related to the Company’s businesses in the future. These matters could
potentially subject the Company to sanctions, damages, recoupments, fines, and other penalties (some of which may not be
covered by insurance), which may, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business, financial position, results of operations, and liquidity. See Note 15.

Other indemnifications — In the ordinary course of business, the Company enters into contracts containing standard
indemnification provisions and indemnifications specific to a transaction, such as a disposal of an operating facility. These
indemnifications may cover claims related to employment-related matters, governmental regulations, environmental issues and
tax matters, as well as patient, third party payor, supplier and contractual relationships. These indemnifications could potentially
subject the Company to damages and other payments which may, either individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results of operations or liquidity.

Income taxes — The Company is subject to various federal and state income tax audits in the ordinary course of business.
Such audits could result in increased tax payments, interest and penalties.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains defined contribution retirement plans covering employees who meet certain minimum eligibility
requirements. Benefits are determined as a percentage of a participant’s contributions and generally are vested based upon length of
service. Retirement plan expense for employees of the Company was $8.2 million and $7.4 million for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022, respectively. Amounts equal to retirement plan expense are funded annually.

NOTE 13 - BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Supplemental information related to the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at December 31 follows (in thousands):

2023 2022
Other current assets:
PrePaid @SSELS ......veuviuiiritieticte ettt ettt ettt ettt et et et ettt ettt ettt eteensensenes $ 26,998 $ 22,390
Insurance proceeds reCEIVADIE .........cvvieriieiiieiiiie ettt sae e ns - 1,911
REDALES ...ttt e e et e e e et e e e e e e et rereeeeaaaaas - 1,551
(@731 1< SRRSO 11,295 8,690

$ 38,293 $ 34,542

Other long-term assets:
Reinsurance and Other T€COVETADIES ............oiivuiiiiiiieieeee e $ 159,166 $ 201,274
OET ettt ettt ettt ettt et et e ettt et e e ens 30,943 26,429
$ 190,109 $ 227,703

PAtiENt ACCOUINLS .....eivviiceieeceee ettt e et e et e et e et e e eteeeaeeeateeeaseeeareeenseeeraeeenseeeneeeenees $ 46,623 $ 47,424
Taxes other than INCOMIE ..........cc..eeiiiuiii e 21,569 23,977
ACCTUCA TNLETEST ...vveieiieeiieeiie ettt ettt et e et e et e e te e e eteeebee e teeeabeeeseeeaseeeseesaseeenseeenseeenseennnas 5,903 434
Accrued acquisition and diVESHIUIE COSES ....ueruirriiiiirierieieieeeeetie st eieeie e seeeseeeseeeeeeneens 3,632 8,413
OBRET ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et ettt ettt et e eaaeens 18,866 20,728

§ 96,593 § 100,976

Deferred credits and other liabilities:

Accrued WOTKers” COMPENSATION.....cc.uieivieriieriierieeiieeeieesreeseeeesereesaeeesereenseeessaeeseeensneesees $ 54,879 $ 57,797
DEfeITed TEVEIMUE. ... viiieiiiiiiieciiecte ettt ettt et e e tb e et e e abeeaaeessaeesaeesaeennnas 15,644 17,121
Deferred COMPENSAtION ......cc.eeiiieiieieeiie ittt ettt e ettt et e e ae e st e saeenseeneesneeneeenes 5,274 5,900
UNClaimed PrOPEILY «..c.vervirtiriiitieieeiieitetet sttt sttt ettt b e s sbe et eae 4,456 3,937
ONET ..ttt e et e et e et e e tae e tb e e e tbe e tb e e abeeetbeeeabeeeabeeearaeenbeeaaeeenneas 4,591 4,512

§ 84,844 § 89,267
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NOTE 14 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company follows the provisions of ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, which addresses how companies should measure
fair value when they are required to use a fair value measure for recognition or disclosure purposes under GAAP.

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability in the principal or
most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The
guidance related to fair value measures establishes a fair value hierarchy that requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The guidance describes three levels of inputs that may
be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 1 assets and liabilities include debt and
equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an active exchange market, as well as certain U.S.
Treasury, other U.S. Government and agency asset backed debt securities that are highly liquid and are actively
traded in over-the-counter markets.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices
in markets that are not active, and other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market
data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of
the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is determined
using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for
which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.

Recurring measurements

The Company had money market funds totaling $30.1 million and $13.3 million as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, consisting of cash and cash equivalents for the Company’s general corporate purposes.

The Company’s insurance subsidiary’s cash and cash equivalents of $5.5 million and $15.9 million as of December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively, classified as insurance subsidiary investments, is maintained for the payment of claims and expenses related to
professional liability and workers’ compensation risks.

The carrying value is equal to fair value for financial instruments that are based upon quoted market prices or current market
rates, such as cash, money market funds, and insurance subsidiary investments, and is based upon Level 1 inputs.

NOTE 15 - LEGAL AND REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS

The Company provides services in a highly regulated industry and is subject to various legal actions and regulatory and other
governmental and internal audits and investigations in the ordinary course of business (including investigations resulting from the
Company’s self-reporting of potential violations of law). These matters could (1) require the Company to pay substantial damages,
fines, penalties or amounts in judgments or settlements, which individually or in the aggregate could exceed amounts, if any, that may
be recovered under the Company’s insurance policies where coverage applies and is available; (2) cause the Company to incur
substantial expenses; (3) require significant time and attention from the Company’s management; (4) subject the Company to
sanctions, including possible exclusions from the Medicare and Medicaid programs; and (5) cause the Company to close or sell one or
more facilities or otherwise modify the way the Company conducts business. The ultimate resolution of these matters, whether as a
result of litigation or settlement, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial position, results of
operations, and liquidity.

In accordance with ASC 450, Contingencies, the Company records an accrued liability for litigation and regulatory matters that
are both probable and reasonably estimable. Additional losses in excess of amounts accrued may be reasonably possible. The
Company reviews loss contingencies that are reasonably possible and determines whether an estimate of the possible loss or range of
loss, individually or in aggregate, can be disclosed in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. These estimates are based
upon currently available information for those legal and regulatory proceedings in which the Company is involved, taking into account
the Company’s best estimate of losses for those matters for which such estimate can be made. The Company’s estimates involve
significant judgment and a variety of assumptions, given that (1) these legal and regulatory proceedings may be in early stages;

(2) discovery may not be completed; (3) damages sought in these legal and regulatory proceedings can be unsubstantiated or
indeterminate; (4) the matters often involve legal uncertainties or evolving areas of law; (5) there are often significant facts in dispute;
and/or (6) there is a wide range of possible outcomes. Accordingly, the Company’s estimated loss or range of loss may change from
time-to-time, and actual losses may be more or less than the current estimate. At this time, except as otherwise specifically noted, no
estimate of the possible loss or range of loss, individually or in the aggregate, in excess of the amounts accrued, if any, can be made
regarding the matters described below.
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NOTE 15 - LEGAL AND REGULATORY PROCEEDINGS (Continued)
Set forth below are descriptions of the Company’s significant legal proceedings.

Medicare and Medicaid payment reviews, audits, and investigations—As a result of the Company’s participation in the
Medicare and Medicaid programs, the Company faces and is currently subject to various governmental and internal reviews,
audits, and investigations to verify the Company’s compliance with these programs and applicable laws and regulations. The
Company is routinely subject to audits under various government programs, such as the CMS Recovery Audit Contractor
program, in which third party firms engaged by CMS conduct extensive reviews of claims data and medical and other records to
identify potential improper payments to healthcare providers under the Medicare program. In addition, the Company, like other
healthcare providers, is subject to ongoing investigations by the Office of Inspector General, the DOJ and state attorneys general
into the billing of services provided to Medicare and Medicaid patients, including whether such services were properly
documented and billed, whether services provided were medically necessary, and general compliance with conditions of
participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Private pay sources such as third party insurance and managed care
entities also often reserve the right to conduct audits. The Company’s costs to respond to and defend any such reviews, audits,
and investigations are significant and are likely to increase in the current enforcement environment. These audits and
investigations may require the Company to refund or retroactively adjust amounts that have been paid under the relevant
government program or by other payors. Further, an adverse review, audit, or investigation also could result in other adverse
consequences, particularly if the underlying conduct is found to be pervasive or systemic. These consequences include (1) state
or federal agencies imposing fines, penalties, and other sanctions on the Company; (2) loss of the Company’s right to participate
in the Medicare or Medicaid programs or one or more third party payor networks; (3) indemnity claims asserted by customers
and others for which the Company provides services; and (4) damage to the Company’s reputation in various markets, which
could adversely affect the Company’s ability to attract patients, customers and employees.

Whistleblower lawsuits—The Company is also subject to qui tam or “whistleblower” lawsuits under the federal False
Claims Act and comparable state laws for allegedly submitting fraudulent bills for services to the Medicare and Medicaid
programs. These lawsuits can result in monetary damages, fines, attorneys’ fees, and the award of bounties to private qui
tam plaintiffs who successfully bring these lawsuits and to the respective government programs. The Company also could be
subject to civil penalties (including the loss of the Company’s licenses to operate one or more facilities or healthcare activities),
criminal penalties (for violations of certain laws and regulations), and exclusion of one or more facilities or healthcare activities
from participation in the Medicare, Medicaid, and other federal and state healthcare programs. The lawsuits are in various stages
of adjudication or investigation and involve a wide variety of claims and potential outcomes.

Employment-related lawsuits—The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of federal and state employment-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the U.S. Fair Labor Standards Act, Equal Employment Opportunity laws, and
enforcement policies of the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, the Office of Civil Rights and state attorneys general,
federal and state wage and hour laws, and a variety of laws enacted by the federal and state governments that govern these and
other employment-related matters. Accordingly, the Company is currently subject to employee-related claims, class actions and
other lawsuits and proceedings in connection with the Company’s operations, including but not limited to those related to
alleged wrongful discharge, illegal discrimination, and violations of equal employment and federal and state wage and hour
laws. Because labor represents such a large portion of the Company’s operating costs, noncompliance with these evolving
federal and state laws and regulations could subject the Company to significant back pay awards, fines, and additional lawsuits
and proceedings. These claims, lawsuits, and proceedings are in various stages of adjudication or investigation and involve a
wide variety of claims and potential outcomes.

Ordinary course matters—In addition to the matters described above, the Company is subject to investigations, claims,
and lawsuits in the ordinary course of business, including investigations resulting from the Company’s obligation to self-report
suspected violations of law and professional liability claims, particularly in the Company’s hospital operations and former
nursing center operations. In many of these claims, plaintiffs’ attorneys are seeking significant fines and compensatory and
punitive damages in addition to attorneys’ fees. The Company maintains professional and general liability insurance in amounts
and coverage that management believes are sufficient for the Company’s operations. However, the Company’s insurance may
not cover all claims against the Company or the full extent of its liability.

NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transition services agreements

As part of the Lifepoint Transaction, the Company entered into transition services agreements with Lifepoint whereas each of
the Company and Lifepoint will provide various transition services such as accounting, marketing, government affairs and income
taxes to the other company. In addition, Lifepoint will provide information systems, accounts payable, and payroll services to the
Company. The Company recorded net charges of $40.9 million and $57.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
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NOTE 16 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Sponsor fees and value capture initiatives

In December 2021, the Company entered into a management services agreement with Apollo Management Holdings, LP
(“Apollo”). As part of this agreement, the Company is required to pay Apollo a monthly fee. These fees totaled $1.0 million for the
Company for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company is also required to pay third party consultants and vendors, and incur other expenses related to various value
capture initiatives which are expected to generate future cost savings. The expense for these items totaled $1.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2023.

Rental income

The Company recorded $2.4 million and $2.5 million of rental income for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively, in other income in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations related to the lease of office space to
Lifepoint.
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